
Before the 
Administrative Hearing Commission 

State of Missouri 

MISSOURI DENTAL BOARD, 

Petitioner, 

VS. 

DALE A. KUNKEL, D.D.S., 

Respondent. 

CONSENT ORDER 

The licensing authority filed a complaint. Section 62 1.045, RSMo Supp. 2007, gives us 
jurisdiction. 

On April 1,2008, the parties filed a "Waiver of Hearing, Joint Stipulation, and Request for 
Consent Order." Our review of the document shows that the parties have stipulated to certain facts and 
waived their right to a hearing before us. Because the parties have agreed to these facts, we incorporate 
them into this order and adopt them as stipulated. Buckner v. Buckner, 912 S.W. 2d 65, 70 (Mo. App., 
W.D. 1995). We conclude that the licensee is subject to discipline under $ 332.321.2, RSMo 2000. We 
incorporate the parties' proposed findings of fact and conclusions of law into this Consent Order. We 
certify the record to the licensing agency under $62  1.1 10, RSMo 2000. 

The only issue before this Commission is whether the stipulated conduct constitutes cause to 
discipline the license. The appropriate disciplinary action is not within our power to decide; that is 
subject to the licensing authority's decision or the parties' agreement. Section 621.1 10, RSMo 2000. 

No statute authorizes us to determine whether the agency has complied with the provisions of 
$ 621.045.3. RSMo Supp. 2007. We have no power to superintend agency compliance with statutory 
procedures. Missouri Health Facilities Review Comm v. Administrative Hearing Comm'n, 700 S.W. 
2d 445,450 (Mo. banc 1985). Therefore, we do not determine whether the agency complied with such 
procedures. A 

SO ORDERED on April 3,2008. 



BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING COMMISSION 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

MISSOURI DENTAL BOARD ) 
P.O. Box 1367 ) 
Jefferson City, MO 65201 ) 

) 
Petitioner, 1 

v. 
) 
1 
) 

DALE A. KUNXEL, D.D.S. 1 
2040 LaQuesta Drive ) 
Neosho, MO 64850 ) 

) 
Respondent. 1 

) 
AND 

DALE A. KUNKEL, D.D.S 
2040 LaQuesta Drive 
Neosho, MO 64850 

Petitioner, 

MISSOURI DENTAL BOARD 
P.O. Box 1367 
Jefferson City, MO 6520 1 

Respondent. 

Case No. 07-125ODB 

Case No. 07-001 7 DB 
07-0203 DB 
07- 0204 DB 

WAIVER OF HEARING, JOINT STIPULATION, AND REQUEST 
FOR CONSENT ORDER 

COMES NOW Missouri Dental Board, (hereinafter "Board") by and through its 

attorney, Nanci R. Wisdom, and Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., (hereinafter "Licensee") in person 



and with counsel, Thomas D. Vaughn, and pursuant to the provisions of 1 CSR 15-3.440 and 

Missouri Revised Statutes Section 536.060 as applicable to this Commission by the provisions 

of Section 621.135 RSMo, and jointly state that the parties waive their right to a hearing before 

the Administrative Hearing Commission in the above-referenced cases, namely Cause 

Numbers 07-1250 DB, 07-0017 DB, 07-0203 DB and 07-0204 DB, and enter the Joint 

Stipulation consistent with the content of this document. Further, the parties hereby agree and 

stipulate that the contents of this document shall resolve all issues, claims and causes of action 

that either party has or might have against the other as a result of the matters contained the 

above-referenced actions pending before the Administrative Hearing Commission and now 

pending in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri. In support of their motion, the Board 

and Licensee, hereby stipulate and agree to the following: 

1. Licensee, acknowledges that he is familiar with the various rights and privileges 

afforded by operation of law in each of the above-referenced causes, including the right to a 

hearing on the charges against him; the right to appear and be represented by counsel; the right 

to have all charges against him proved upon the record by competent and substantial evidence; 

the right to cross-examine any witnesses appearing at the hearing against him; the right to 

present evidence on his own behalf at the hearing; the right to a decision upon the record by a 

fair and impartial Administrative Hearing Commissioner concerning the charges pending 

against him; the right to appeal a decision in favor of the Board, by the Administrative Hearing 

Commission on the basis if said decision is not supported by substantial and competent 

evidence. Being familiar with these and other attendant rights provided Licensee, by operation 

of law, he knowingly and voluntarily waives each and every one of these rights and fully and 



freely enters into this "Waiver of Hearing, Joint Stipulation and Request for Consent Order" 

and consents and agrees to abide by the terms and conditions of this document. 

2. The Board, is an agency of the State of Missouri created and established 

pursuant to Missouri Revised Statutes Section 332.021, as applicable to this matter for the 

purpose of administering and enforcing the provisions of Chapter 332, Dentistry. 

3. Licensee is and at all times relevant to this cause was, the holder of a current 

and valid license to practice dentistry and certificate of registration issued by the Board. 

4. That the First Amended Complaint of the Board in the above-styled cause is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof by reference. 

5. Licensee admits the allegations contained in the First Amended Complaint of 

the Board in cause number 07-1250 DB and further admits that said conduct falls within the 

intendment of Section 332.321 RSMo as applicable to each allegations contained in the First 

Amended Complaint and further admits that said conduct subjects his license to discipline 

under the provisions of Section 332.321 RSMo as applicable to the allegations contained in the 

First Amended Complaint. 

6. The Board admits Licensee has filed with the Board an application for a 

Parenteral Conscious Sedation Permit pursuant to 20 CSR 2110-4.020(6) which allows 

Licensee to perform both enteral and parenteral conscious sedation and applications for Site 

Certificates pursuant to 20 CSR 21 10-4.020(7) at his offices located at Four States Dental 

Care, 2040 LaQuesta Drive, Neosho, Missouri 64850 and Four States Dental Care, 412 South 

Highway 71, Suite G, Pineville, Missouri 64856. The parties stipulate and agree these 

applications shall be considered complete and timely filed with the Board. 



7. Based on the foregoing, the parties mutually agree that this document will be 

filed with the Administrative Hearing Commission and that the parties request that the 

Administrative Hearing Commission issue its order finding cause for discipline of the license 

of Licensee, pursuant to the provisions of Section 332.321 RSMo as alleged in the First 

Amended Complaint heretofore filed in Cause Number 07-1250 DB and further referring this 

matter to the Missouri Dental Board for discipline. 

JOINT AGREED DISCIPLINARY ORDER IN CAUSE NUMBER 07-1 250 DB 

Based on the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate that the following shall 

constitute the disciplinary order entered by the Board in Cause Number 07-1250 DB under 

authority of 5621.045.3, RSMo Supp. 

8. Licensee's license to practice dentistry shall be placed on probation for a period 

of eighteen (18) months. During Licensee's probation, Licensee shall be allowed to practice 

dentistry under Chapter 332, RSMo, provided he adheres to all of the terms of this Joint 

Agreed Disciplinary Order in Cause Number 07- 1250 DB. 

9. During the period of probation, Licensee shall keep the Missouri Dental Board 

apprised at all times in writing of his current home and work addresses and telephone numbers 

at each place of employment. Licensee shall notify the Board within ten (10) days of any 

change in this information. 

10. During the period of probation, Licensee shall comply with all provisions of 

Chapter 332, RSMo, all rules and regulations of the Missouri Dental Board, and all federal and 



state laws, rules and regulations. "State" here includes the state of Missouri and all other states 

and territories of the Unites States. 

11. During the period of probation, Licensee shall appear before the Board or one of 

its representatives for a personal interview upon the Board's request. 

12. Pursuant to section 332.321.6, RSMo, if at any time during the period of 

probation Licensee removes himself fiom the State of Missouri and fails to keep the Board 

informed of his current place of business and residence, ceases to be currently licensed under 

the provisions of Chapter 332, or fails to keep the Missouri Dental Board advised of his current 

place of business and residence, the time of his absence, or unlicensed status, or unknown 

whereabouts shall not be deemed or taken as any part of the time of discipline so imposed. 

13. During the period of probation, Licensee shall accept and comply with 

unannounced visits fiom the Board's representatives to monitor his compliance with the terms 

and conditions of this agreement. 

14. Licensee shall take the continuing education course in ethics sponsored by the 

University of Missouri-Kansas City or its equivalent offered by a Board approved sponsor. 

This continuing education shall be in addition to the continuing education required by law for 

licensure renewal by the Board. This course must be taken within the first twelve (12) months 

of the effective date of this Joint Agreed Disciplinary Order. Licensee shall provide the Board 

with proof of attendance fiom the sponsor of the program no later than thirty (30) days after 

attending the course. Failure to obtain the required additional continuing education hours 

andlor submit the required documentation to the Board will result in a violation of the terms of 

discipline. 



15. Within one hundred and eighty (1 80) days of the effective date of this Joint 

Agreed Disciplinary Order in Cause Nurnber 07-1250 DB, Licensee shall take and 

successfully complete the jurisprudence exam for dentists in the state of Missouri. 

16. The parties to this Joint Agreed Disciplinary Order in Cause Number 07-1250 

DB understand that the Board will maintain this Joint Agreed Disciplinary Order in Cause 

Number 07-1250 DB as an open and public record of the Board as provided in Chapters 332, 

6 10 and 620, RSMo. 

17. Upon the expiration and successful completion of the disciplinary period, 

Licensee's license to practice dentistry in the State of Missouri, shall be fully restored if all 

other requirements of law have been satisfied; provided, however, that in the event the Board 

determines that Licensee has violated any term or condition of this Joint Agreed Disciplinary 

Order in Cause Number 07-1250 DB, the Board may, in its discretion, after an evidentiary 

hearing, vacate and set aside the discipline imposed herein and may suspend, revoke, or 

otherwise lawfully discipline Licensee. 

18. No order shall be entered by the Board pursuant to the preceding paragraph of 

this agreement without notice and an opportunity for hearing before the Board in accordance 

with the provisions of Chapter 536, RSMo. 

19. If the Board determines that Licensee has violated a term or condition of this 

agreement, which violation would also be actionable in a proceeding before the Administrative 

Hearing Commission or the circuit court, the Board may elect to pursue any lawful remedies or 

procedures afforded it and is not bound by this agreement in its determination of appropriate 

legal actions concerning such violation. 



JOINT STIPULATION IN CAUSE NUMBER 07-0017DB, 07-0203 DB, AND 07-0204 DB 

Based on the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate that the following shall 

constitute their agreement and request for Order in Cause Nos. 07-00 17 DB, 07-0203 DB and 

07-0204 DB : 

20. The Board shall issue a Parenteral Conscious Sedation Permit to Licensee and a 

Site Certificate for Licensee's practice located at Four States Dental Care, 2040 LaQuesta 

Drive, Neosho, Missouri 64850 and a Site Certificate for Licensee's practice located at Four 

States Dental Care, 41 2 South Highway 7 1, Suite G, Pineville, Missouri 64856 within five (5) 

days of the date of this Waiver of Hearing, Joint Stipulation and Request for Consent Order. 

21. Licensee hereby dismisses Cause Numbers 07-001 7 DB, 07-0203 DB, and 07- 

0204 DB pending before the Administrative Hearing Commission. 

JOINT STIPULATION AS TO COLE COUNTY CASE NUMBER 08AC-CC00184 

Based on the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate that the following shall 

constitute their agreement in the case pending in the Circuit Court of Cole County, Missouri 

styled Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S. v. Rolfe C. McCoy, D.M.D., et al., Cause Number 08AC- 

CCOO 1 84:: 

22. Not later than the next business day after the Board shall give written notice to 

Licensee that it has issued the permits described in paragraph 20 above, Licensee shall dismiss 

with prejudice at Licensee's cost the case now pending in the Circuit Court of Cole County, 



Missouri styled Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S. v. Rolfe C. McCoy, D.M.D., et al., Cause Number 

08AC-CC00184. 

JOINT STIPULATION WITH REGARD TO MUTUAL RELEASES AND OTHER 
MATTERS BETWEEN THE PARTIES 

Based on the foregoing, the parties mutually agree and stipulate that the following shall 

constitute their agreement with regard to mutual releases and other matters between and1 or 

known to the parties: 

23. Licensee hereby waives any and all rights to pursue any action, including, but 

not limited to any action for attorney fees, fines or other charges, against the Board or any of 

its current members, past members or any current member or past member of the Board's staff, 

including but not limited to those named parties in the case pending in the Circuit Court of 

Cole County, Missouri styled Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S. v. Rolfe C. McCoy, D.M.D., et al., 

Cause Number 08AC-CC00184. 

24. Licensee hereby waives any and all rights to pursue any action for attorney fees 

against the Board arising out of the causes pending before the Administrative Hearing 

Commission with Cause Numbers 07-1250 DB, 07-0017 DB, 07-0203 DB, and 07-0204 DB. 

25. Licensee and the Board agree that this Waiver of Hearing, Joint Stipulation and 

Request for Consent Order resolves all issues, claims, and causes of action of any type 

whatsoever known to Licensee or the Board at this time. 



26- Licensee hereby releases the Board and the Board likewise releases Licensee 

&om any claim or cause of action that Licensee has, or might have, ag&t the Board has, or 

might have, agaiaet Licensee, that are currmtly within the knowledge of Licensee and tho 

Board except as specifi~ally stated in this Waiver of Hearing, Joint Stipulation and Request for 

Consent Order. Neither Licensee or the Board has knowledge of any information at this t h e  

that might lead to a cause of action against the other party. 

WEREPORE, based upon the foregoing, the parties mutually request that the 

Administrative Hearing Commissiofi issue a Consent Order embodying the terms and 

conditions of his "Waiver of Hearing, Joint Stipulation, and Request fbr Consent Order" in 

Cause Number 07-1250 DB pending before the Administrative Hearing Conm~ission and thrrt 

Chus~ Numbers 07-0017 DB, 07-0203 DB and 07-0204 DB pending before the Administrative 

Bearing Commission be diemissed and fiat all matters pending before thc Administrative 

Hearing ConImission be closed, 

DALE A. KUNKEL, D.D,S. HUSCH BLACKWELL SANDERS LLP 

235 East High Street, S ~ t e  200 
P. 0. Box 125 1 
Jefferson City, Missouri 65 2 0 1 
Phone: 573-635-91 18 
Fax: 573-634-7854 

ATTORNEYS FOR DALE A. K W U L ,  D.D ,S. 

04/01/2008 TUE 14:49 [TX/RX NO 64711 @lo02 



MISSOURI DENTAL BOARD NANCI R. WISDOM, L.C. 

By: 

BRIAN BARNETT 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 

107 West Fourth Street 
Salem, Missouri 65560 
Phone: 573-729-8630 
Fax: 573-729-8640 

ATTORNEYS FOR MISSOLM 
DENTAL BOARD 



BEFORE THE ADMIhTISTRATIVE HEARING COMMISSION 
STATE OF MISSOLrRI 

MISSOURI DENTAL BOARD 
P.O. Box 1367 
Jefferson City, MO 65201 

Petitioner, 

DALE A. KUNKEL, D.D.S. 
2040 LaQuesta Drive 
Neosho, MO 64850 

Respondent. 

Case No. 07-1250DB 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW Petitioner, Missouri Dental Board, by and through its attorney 

Nanci R. Wisdom and for its First Amended Complaint in the above-referenced matter 

states and alleges as follows: 

1. The Petitioner Missouri Dental Board is an agency of the State of Missouri, 

created and established pursuant to Missouri Revised Statute sections 332.021 to 332.061 

for the purpose of executing and enforcing the provisions of Chapter 332 Dentistry. 

2. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., is and at all times herein relevant, has 

been a licensed and certified dentist in the State of Missouri. 

3. This Commission has jurisdiction to hear this Complaint pursuant to the 

provision in the Missouri Revised Statute section 621.045. 

EXHIBIT A 



4. That at all times relevant herein, Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S. 

possessed a valid registration issued by the Drug Enforcement Agency and the Bureau of 

Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs, (hereinafter referred to as "Bureau"). 

5 .  On February 20,2006, an investigator from the Missouri Bureau of 

Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs ("BNDD") inspected Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, 

D.D.S.'s office. 

6. The inspection by BNDD revealed the following: 

a. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., stocked midazolam and 

triazolam. 

b. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not maintain an annual 

inventory of controlled substances in his possession in violation of Section 195.050.6 

RSMo and 19 CSR 30-1.042(3). 

c. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not document the date 

controlled substances were received on his invoices in violation of Section 195.050.6 

RSMo and 19 CSR 30-1.048(1). 

d. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., documented dispensing and 

administration records on the same document and did not document patients' addresses in 

his dispensing records in violation of Section 195.050.6 RSMo and 19 CSR 30-1.048(1). 

e. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., dispensed individual loose 

tablets of controlled substances in crush proof envelopes, but did not apply any type of 

labeling, physician identification or directions in violation of Section 195.100.5 RSMo 

and 19 CSR 30-1.066(1)(C). 



f. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., dispensed controlled 

substances without a sticker warning against the illegal transfer of controlled substances 

in violation of Section 195.100.3 RSMo. 

g. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., dispensed controlled 

substances as loose tablets or in envelopes and not in containers that were childproof as 

required by the Poison Prevention Packaging Act of 1970 (1 5 USC 1471-1476) in 

violation of 19 CSR 30-1.066 (l)(B). 

h. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not maintain complete 

and accurate controlled substance records in violation of Section 195.050.6 RSMo and 19 

CSR 30-1.044(1). 

1. Because Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not possess 

complete records, an inventory and dates of receipt drugs, an audit by BNDD to verify 

the accountability for all controlled substances could not be performed to determine if 

any controlled substances were missing. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not 

have adequate security to detect and prevent the diversion of controlled substances in 

violation of 19 CSR 30-1.031(1). 

j. An inventory form provided by Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, 

D.D.S., to BNDD failed to list the finished for of the controlled substances, the number of 

commercial containers of each finished form, the date the inventory was taken and 

whether the inventory was taken at the open or close of business in violation of Section 

195.050.6 RSMo, 19 CSR 30-1.042(1)(A),(D), 19 CSR 30-1.042(5)(C),(D) and 19 CSR 

30-042(7). 



k. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S.,'s inventory form combined 

controlled and non-controlled substances in violation of 19 CSR 30-1.041(3)(B). 

1. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not properly dispose of 

the following controlled substances in violation of 19 CSR 30-1.078(1): 

02-03-05 midazolam 32mg 

10-03-05 triazolam 1 1/2 

10-03-05 triazolam +2 

7. Midazolam is a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant to Section 

195.017.8(2)(hh) RSMo. 

8. Triazolarn is a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant to Section 

195.017.8(2)(vv) RSMo. 

9. Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321.2 provides that the Missouri 

Dental Board file a Complaint against a dentist licensed to practice in Missouri under the 

following circumstances: 

. . . (15) Violation of the drug laws or rules or regulations of this state, any other 
state or the federal government; 

10. That as a result of the foregoing, Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S. has 

failed to comply with Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321.2. 

11. That Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321.3 gives Petitioner, 

Missouri Dental Board, the authority to take disciplinary action against the dentist 

licensed to practice dentistry in the State of Missouri for violations enumerated in 

Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321.2. 

WHEREFORE, based on the foregoing, Petitioner, Missouri Dental Board, prays 

this Commission to enter an order finding that it has cause to take disciplinary action 



against Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., or, in the alternative, this matter be set for 

an evidentiary hearing. 

NANCI R. WISDOM, L.C. 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 
POST OFFICE BOX 983 
107 WEST FOURTH STREET 
SALEM, MISSOURI 65560 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a copy of the above and foregoing document was forwarded to Tom 
Vaughn, Attorney for Respondent, 235 High Street, Suite 200, Jefferson City, MO 65101 by 
hand delivery on this & day of April, 2008. 



BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATIVE HEAR1 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

MISSOLTRI DENTAL BOARD 1 
P.O. Box 1367 1 
Jefferson City, MO 65201 1 

1 

COMMISS ION 

Petitioner, 1 
1 

v. 1 Case No. 07-1250DB 
1 

DALE A. KLrNKEL, D.D.S. 1 
2040 LaQuesta Drive 1 
Neosho, MO 64850 1 

1 
Respondent. 1 

1 

REQUEST FOR LEAVE TO FILE FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW Petitioner, Missouri Dental Board, by and through its counsel, 

Nanci R. Wisdom, and requests permission to file its First Amended Complaint in the 

above matter and for said motion states as follows: 

1. The parties in the above-referenced matter have reached a settlement in all 

matters pending between the parties. 

2. As a part of said settlement, Petitioner requests leave to file its First 

Amended Complaint. 

3. Respondent consents to this request. 

WHEREFORE, Petitioner prays for leave to file its First Amended Complaint and 

for such other Order as the Commission deems just and proper. 



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a copy of the above and foregoing document was forwarded 
to Tom Vaughn, Attorney for Respondent, 235 High Street, Suite 200, Jefferson City, 
MO 65 101 by hand delivery on this -ay of M, 2 8. 

Na i R. isdom 7-- 



BEFORE THE ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING COMMISSION 
STATE OF MISSOURI 

v. Case No. 07-1250DB 
) 

DALE A. KUNKEL, D.D.S. 1 
2040 LaQuesta Drive 1 
Neosho, MO 64850 1 

1 
Respondent. 1 

) 

FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW Petitioner, Missouri Dental Board, by and through its attorney 

Nanci R. Wisdom and for its First Amended Complaint in the above-referenced matter 

states and alleges as follows: 

1. The Petitioner Missouri Dental Board is an agency of the State of Missouri, 

created and established pursuant to Missouri Revised Statute sections 332.021 to 332.061 

for the purpose of executing and enforcing the provisions of Chapter 332 Dentistry. 

2. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., is and at all times herein relevant, has 

been a licensed and certified dentist in the State of Missouri. 

3. This Commission has jurisdiction to hear this Complaint pursuant to the 

provision in the Missouri Revised Statute section 621.045. 



4. That at all times relevant herein, Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S. 

possessed a valid registration issued by the Drug Enforcement Agency and the Bureau of 

Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs, (hereinafter referred to as "Bureau"). 

5. On February 20,2006, an investigator from the Missouri Bureau of 

lVarcotics and Dangerous Drugs ("BNDD") inspected Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, 

D.D.S.,'s office. 

6. The inspection by BNDD revealed the following: 

a. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., stocked midazolam and 

triazolam. 

b. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not maintain an annual 

inventory of controlled substances in his possession in violation of Section 195.050.6 

RSMo and 19 CSR 30-1.042(3). 

c. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not document the date 

controlled substances were received on his invoices in violation of Section 195.050.6 

RSMo and 19 CSR 30-1.048(1). 

d. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., documented dispensing and 

administration records on the same document and did not document patients' addresses in 

his dispensing records in violation of Section 195.050.6 RSMo and 19 CSR 30-1.048(1). 

e. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., dispensed individual loose 

tablets of controlled substances in crush proof envelopes, but did not apply any type of 

labeling, physician identification or directions in violation of Section 195.100.5 RSMo 

and 19 CSR 30-1.066(1)(C). 



f. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., dispensed controlled 

substances without a sticker warning against the illegal transfer of controlled substances 

in violation of Section 195.100.3 RSMo. 

g. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., dispensed controlled 

substances as loose tablets or in envelopes and not in containers that were childproof as 

required by the Poison Prevention Packaging Act of 1970 (15 USC 1471-1476) in 

violation of 19 CSR 30-1.066 (l)(B). 

h. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not maintain complete 

and accurate controlled substance records in violation of Section 195.050.6 RSMo and 19 

CSR 30-1.044(1). 

1. Because Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not possess 

complete records, an inventory and dates of receipt drugs, an audit by BNDD to verify 

the accountability for all controlled substances could not be performed to determine if 

any controlled substances were missing. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not 

have adequate security to detect and prevent the diversion of controlled substances in 

violation of 19 CSR 30-1.03 I. (1). 

j. An inventory form provided by Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, 

D.D.S., to BNDD failed to list the finished for of the controlled substances, the number of 

commercial containers of each finished form, the date the inventory was taken and 

whether the inventory was taken at the open or close of business in violation of Section 

195.050.6 RSMo, 19 CSR 30-1.042(1)(A),(D), 19 CSR 30-1.042(5)(C),(D) and 19 CSR 

30-042(7). 



k. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S.,'s inventory form combined 

controlled and non-controlled substances in violation of 19 CSR 30-1.041(3)(B). 

1. Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., did not properly dispose of 

the following controlled substances in violation of 19 CSR 30-1.078(1): 

02-03-05 midazolam 3 2mg 

10-03-05 triazolam 1 ?4 

10-03-05 triazolam +2 

7. Midazolam is a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant to Section 

195.017.8(2)(hh) RSMo. 

8. Triazolam is a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant to Section 

195.017.8(2)(vv) RSMo. 

9. Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321.2 provides that the Missouri 

Dental Board file a Complaint against a dentist licensed to practice in Missouri under the 

following circumstances: 

. . . (15) Violation of the drug laws or rules or regulations of this state, any other 
state or the federal government; 

10. That as a result of the foregoing, Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S. has 

failed to comply with Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321.2. 

11. That Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321.3 gives Petitioner, 

Missouri Dental Board, the authority to take disciplinary action against the dentist 

licensed to practice dentistry in the State of Missouri for violations enumerated in 

Missouri Revised Statute section 332.321 -2. 

WHEREFORE, based on the foregoing, Petitioner, Missouri Dental Board, prays 

this Commission to enter an order finding that it has cause to take disciplinary action 



against Respondent, Dale A. Kunkel, D.D.S., or, in the alternative, this matter be set for 

an evidentiary hearing. 

NANCI R. WISDOM, L.C. 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 
POST OFFICE BOX 983 
107 WEST FOURTH STREET 
SALEM, MISSOURI 65560 
(573) 729-8630 

#39359 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a copy of the above and foregoing document was forwarded to Tom 
Vaughn, Attorney for Respondent, 235 High Street, Suite 200, Jefferson City, MO 65101 by 
hand delivery on this day of April, 2008. 


